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ANTITRUST DIVISION
Assistant Attorney General Richard W. McLaren

DISTRICT COURT

SHERMAN ACT

JURY FINDS PORTABLE BUILDING MANUFACTURERS GUILTY
OF VIOLATING SECTION 1 OF THE SHERMAN ACT.

United States v. Manufacturers' Association Of The Relocatable
Buildinﬁ Industry, et al., (Cr. 70-945 SAW; November 18, 1971;
DJ 60-12-128)

Trial in this matter commenced on October 12 before a jury with
Judge Stanley Weigel presiding. The indictment charged defendant associ-
tion and its four corporate members with agreeing not to reduce bids on a
rebid situation within sixty days of the original bid. At the start of the
trial, Judge Weigel informed defense counsel that this agreement, if
proven, would, in his view, amount to a per Se violation of Section 1 and
that he would therefore not permit any evidence to be introduced regarding
reasonableness or justification for the agreement. Judge Weigel kept to
this during the course of the trial and went so far as to instruct the jury
during the course of defendants' opening statement that they should disre-
gard any evidence as to the reasonableness of the charged agreement.
During the course of the trial, defense counsel constantly pressed Judge
Weigelto reversethis ruling and Judge Weigel expressed displeasure at
what he termed as filibustering tactics by defense counsel. On numerous
occasions during the course of the trial, defense counsel moved for a mis-
trial on the grounds that Judge Weigel had made it obvious to the jury that
he was strongly sympathetic to the government's case.

On October 20, just prior to the time the jury was to receive its in-
structions, defense counsel made yet another motion for a mistrial. Judge
Weigel granted their motion. He indicated from the bench that he felt that
this case was too important for any appeal to be clouded with side issues
such as the statements made by him concerning the actions of defense
counsel during the course of the trial.

The retrial of this matter commenced on the following Tuesday,
October 26. Judge Weigel again restricted defendants from introducing any
justification evidence for the charged agreement. On Friday, October 29,
the jury, after deliberating for approximately three hours, returned a
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verdict of guilty as to each defendant. At the sentencing on November 18,
Judge Weigel gave thedefendantassociation a $500. 00 fine. As to each of
the other defendants, he imposed a fine of $10, 000. 00.

In accordance with the request of the Government, Judge Weigel also
awarded costs to the United States and included the cost of the daily tran-
script in the taxable costs. The Judge summarily denied each of the de-
fendants' motions for acquittal and a new trial.

Staff: Gilbert Pavlovsky and Mark F. Anderson (Antitrust Division)
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CRIMINAL DIVISION -
Acting Assistant Attorney General Henry E. Peterse

COURTS OF APPEALS

FIREARMS

FIREARMS DEFINITIONS: "READILY CONVERTIBLE'" STARTER
GUNS AND SAWED-OFF SHOTGUNS :

United States v. 16,179 Molso Italian .22 Winlee Derringer Converti-
ble Starter Guns (C. A. 2, June 21, 1971; 443 F. 2d 463; D.J. 80-52-28)

A recent case in the Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit and an
amendment to the Code of Federal Regulations have helped to clarify two
troublesome definitions of weapons covered under the federal firearms
laws--those covered under Title 18 as weapons which can be ''readily con-
verted' to expel a projectile and those covered under Title 26 as sawed-off
shotguns.

In a civil forfeiture case before the Second Circuit, the Court was
asked to decide whether a quantity of seized starter guns were firearms
illegally imported in violation of 18 U.S. C. 921, which covers ''any weapon
(including a starter gun) which will or is designed to or may readily be

converted to expel a projectile by the action of an explosive.' (Emphasis

added.) The defendant had imported 16,179 starter guns which could be
converted to shoot live ammunition within three to twelve minutes. The
Court held that the statute in question was not unconstitutionally vague and
that reasonable men would surely agree that guns which can be so quickly
transformed into dangerous weapons are ''readily convertible.'" The Court
added that the statutory standard is sufficiently definite, especially for a
civil proceeding, in which the government's burden is only that of a prepon-
derance of the evidence. The Court's opinion, however, should also be
helpful in criminal prosecutions under the statute.

Sawed-off shotguns, i.e., those having barrels of less than 18 inches,
and sawed-off rifles must be registered under the provisions of Title 26,
Section 5801, et seq. Part 179 of Title 26 of the Code of Federal Regulations
was recently amended to specify how measurement of these shotguns is to be
made. '"'For the purpose of this definition (of firearms), the length of the
barrel on a shotgun or rifle shall be determined by measuring the distance
between the muzzle and the face of the bolt, breech or breech lock when
closed and when the shotgun or rifle is cocked.'" 36 F.R. §179.11 at page
14257, published August 3,1971l. This technical amendment gives government

an objective standard for measurement of a National Firearms Act weapon
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and should facilitate proof at trial in those marginal cases where the gun
measurements are very near the statutory minimums.

Staff: Former United States Attorney Edward R. Neaher
Assistant United States Attorneys Michael F.
Crawford and David G. Trager
(E. D. New York)

NARCOTIC ADDICT REHABILITATION ACT

INTERPRETATION OF SENTENCING REQUIREMENT

Thomas Charles Baughman v. United States (C.A. 8, No. 71-1005,
decided November 19, 1971. D.J. 12-39-169)

Baughman was convicted upon his plea of guilty to a violation of
26 U.S.C. 4704(a). Upon finding that he was a narcotic addict who was
likely to be rehabilitated, the United States district court for the District
of Minnesota sentenced Baughman pursuant to Title II of the Narcotic Addict
Rehabilitation Act of 1966 (NARA), 18 U.S. C. 4251 et seq., to an indeter-
minate term not to exceed ten years, as required by 18 U. S. C. 4253(a).
The district court indicated that were it not for the position of the Depart-
ment of Justice that 18 U.S. C. 4253(a) requires that the sentence be for an
indeterminate term of ten years, or the maximum sentence otherwise
allowable, whichever is less, it would have imposed a sentence of three and
one half years.

Thereafter, Baughman moved pursuant to 28 U.S. C. 2255 to vacate
the sentence, arguing that the district court had erroneously construed
18 U.S. C. 4253(a) in holding the ten year indeterminate term mandatory.
Relief was denied by the district court, and Baughman appealed.

The United States Court of Appeals held that in light of the legisla-
tive history of Title II of NARA, and in light of the statutes upon which it
was modeled, specifically the California narcotic addict rehabilitation
statute, Cal. Welfare & Instit. Code §§3000-3305 (West 1966), the commit-
ment pursuant to 18 U, S. C. 4253(a) is for an indeterminate period of time,
with the patient to be discharged from custody by the incarcerating
authorities at the earlier of either a determination that the treatment has
been successful, or the expiration of ten years or a period of time equal to
the maximum sentence allowable under the statute violated, whichever is
less.

In so holding in this case of first impression at the appellate level,

the Eighth Circuit agrees with the position of the Department of Justice and
the Bureau of Prisons, and also of Judge Carter of the Ninth Circuit and the
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late Judge Kunzel of the Southern District of California, as set forth in
44 F.R.D. 197, 221 (1968). The Eight Circuit disagrees with the position
taken by judges in the Districts of Connecticut, Southern New York, and
Puerto Rico, that the court may set the duration of the section 4253 com-
mitment at its discretion.

Accordingly, United States Attorneys faced with the question of how
long the sentence under 18 U.S. C. 4253 must be should rely upon the
Baughman case, which represents the position of the Department of Justice.

Staff: United States Attorney Robert G. Renner, Harold James
Pickerstein (Criminal Division) (D. of Minnesota)
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INTERNAL SECURITY DIVISION
Assistant Attorney General Robert C. Mardian

FOREIGN AGENTS REGISTRATION ACT

OF 1938, AS AMENDED

The Registration Section of the Internal Security Division administer ¢
the Foreign Agents Registration Act of 1938, as amended, (22 USC 611)
which requires registration with the Attorney General by certain persons
who engage within the United States in defined categories of activity on
behalf of foreign principals.

During the last half of November of this year the following new regis-
trations were filed with the Attorney General pursuant to the provisions of
the Act:

Association of Japanese Textile Imports, Inc., 551 Fifth Avenue,
New York, New York, registered on November 18, 1971 as agent of 15
member corporations whose Stock is owned in whole or in part by foreign
persons. Registrant will promote trade in textiles between the United
States and Japan.

Murden and Company, Inc., 19 East 51st Street, New York, New
York, registered on November 23, 1971 as agent of the Embassy of Brazii.
Registrant will engage in public relations activities with particular refer-
ence to the forthcoming official visit of the President of Brazil.
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LAND AND NATURAL RESOURCES DIVISION
Assistant Attorney General Shiro Kashiwa

COURTS OF APPEALS

ENVIRONMENT

INJUNCTION AGAINST DISBURSEMENT OF SAFE STREETS ACT
BLOCK GRANT FUNDS FOR NONCOMPLIANCE WITH NATIONAL ENVI-
RONMENTAL POLICY ACT AND NATIONAL HISTORIC PRESERVATION
ACT; NONAPPLICABILITY TO STATES.

Ely, et al. v. Velde, etal. (C.A. 4, No. 71-1351, Nov. §, 1971;
D.J. 90-1-4-246)

The district court denied an injuction against the distribution of block
grant funds under the Safe Streets Act by the Law Enforcement Assistance
Administration (LEAA) to the State of Virginia for the conStruction of a
Reception and Medical Center for prisoners on land located in the
Greensprings area of Virginia. Injunctive relief was sought against federal
and state officials on the basis of potential harm to a unique part of the
historical and cultural environment of the United States without complying
with the National Historic Preservation Act (NHPA) and harm to the local
environment from an ecological standpoint, and because LEAA had failed to
file an impact statement required by the National Environmental Policy Act
of 1969 (NEPA). The district court determined that LEAA's enabling legis-
lation created a mandatory duty to keep '"hands off' state spending and dis-
burse funds once a state plan had been approved. It ruled further that
NEPA was discretionary and could not impose a duty on LEAA of compli-
ance when the duty was against the mandate of its own legislation.

On appeal, the Fourth Circuit reversed and remanded, holding that
LEAA must compiy with the procedural requirements of both NHPA and
NEPA, that NEPA and NHPA are not irreconcilable with the Safe Streets
Act, and that compliance with NEPA is not discretionary. Both NHPA and
NEPA were held applicable only to federal agencies, not the states. The
attempt to impose environmental obligations on states, based on the
Constitution, was rejected. Denial of the injunction against the state offi-
cial was consequently affirmed.

Staff: Edmund B. Clark and John D. Helm (Land and Natural
Resources Division); Assistant United States Attorney
David G. Lowe (E.D. Va.)
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INDIANS; SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY

JURISDICTION TO COMPEL REGULATIONS GOVERNING TRADERS
ON RESERVATIONS; REVIEWABLE EXERCISE OF DISCRETION; ADMIN-
ISTRATIVE PROCEDURE ACT.

Rockbridge v. Lincoln (C. A. 9, No. 25437, Sept. 1, 1971; D.J.
390-2-4-145)

Individual members of the Navajo Tribe brought this proceedings to
compel officials of the Department of the Interior to adopt and enforce
more comprehensive rules and regulations governing traders doing busi-
ness within the Navajo Indian Reservation. It was alleged that there was a
duty imposed by 25 U.S.C. 261 and 262 on the officials of the Interior De-
partment to issue and enforce regulations specifying the kind and quantity
of goods, and their prices, which may be sold to Indians living on the
Navajo Reservation.

The district court granted the appellees' motion to dismiss on two
grounds, (l) that the Administrative Procedure Act, 5 U.S.C. 701 et seq.,
did not confer jurisdiction on the court, and (2) that 25 U.S. C. 261 and 262
conferred discretion upon the Secretary which exempted hi8 actions from
the terms of the Administrative Procedure Act. Based upon the foregoing,
the court determined that the appeallees had not acted in excess of their
Statutory powers and that the doctrine of sovereign immunity barred the
action. The rules regulating trading within the Navajo Reservation, which
had previously been issued by the Interior Department, did not control
prices which was one of the basic aims sought by the plaintiffs in this
action.

The Court of Appeals reversed the district court on both the grounds
upon which it had dismissed complaint. The court conStrued the history of
the congressional acts (25 U. S. C. 261 and 262) and determined that the
Commissioner of Indian Affairs had not been given unbridled discretion to
refuse to regulate trading on the Reservation but had only been given dis-
cretion in deciding what regulations to promulgate and in determining spe-
cific quantities, prices and kinds.

In disposing of the sovereign immunity defense, the Court of Appeals

reasoned that, since the plaintiffs were not seeking money damages or
e

ates. Plaintiffs were held to be only seeking to have officials of the Gov-
crnment perform the acts which Congress had directed.
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The Court of Appeals remanded this case to the district court, with
instructions to assume-‘complete jurisdiction over the controversy and to
conduct a trial on the merits.

Staff: Herbert Pittle and George R. Hyde (Land and Natural
Resources Division)

MINERAL LEASING ACT; OIL AND GAS LEASES; UNITIZATION;
RENTAL RATES IN AND OUT OF UNIT AREA; JUDICIAL REVIEW OF
ADMINISTRATIVE INTERPRETATIONS OF LEASING REGULATIONS;
LEASED ACREAGE ELIMINATED FROM UNIT BUT PART OF LEASE
WITH OTHER UNITIZED ACREAGE MUST BE CHARGED LOWER UNIT
RENTAL.

Standard Oil Company of California v. Morton (C. A. 9, No.. 26939,
Nov. 3, 1971; D.J. 90-1-18-871)

In 1958 five noncompetitive leases were issued by the Secretary of
the Interior as authorized by Section 17 of the Mineral Leasing Act as then
amended (30 U.S.C. sec. 226 [1958 ed.]). In 1959 all five, with numerous
others, were contractually committed to a unit agreement joining Separ-
ately held properties to a common plan controlling development and produc-
tion of oil and gas in the unit area. See 30 C.F.R. 8ec 226. 12. The unit
agreement named the leasee, Standard Oil, as unit operator to manage and
carry out this plan subject to approval by the Geological Survey, Depart-
ment of the Interior.

The unit area itSelf was divided into two sub-areas, a ''participating'
area (sharing expenses and benefits of unit development for which it is
used) and a "nonparticipating' area (unused for unit development and re-
stricted by the unit agreement for separate development).

Of the five unitized leases, 7,560 acres were nonparticipating. The
7,500 acres were also nonproducing, which meant that they were cLarged
a flat-rate rental rather than percentage royalty. Part of the 7,500 acres
were located on a known geologic structure (KGS) of a producing oil and
gal field and, had they not be unitized, they would have been charged $1 per
acre per year by the terms of the Secretary's regulations and the leases.
But, with regard to nonparticipating leased acreage in a unit, the applicable
rate for KGS and non-KGS leases alike was 50 centS per acre per year.
43 C.F.R. secs. 192.80-192.81 (1954 ed.). The 7,560 acreage, while
unitized, was charged the 50-cent rate by the Secretary.

The unit agreement required that unitized areas remaining nonpartic-
ipating for five years after the establishment of the initial participating
area be eliminated automatically from the unit area. In 1967, the 7,560
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acres here involved were autornatically eliminated from the unit, but other
parts of each of the five leases covered by the liminated acreage still re-
mained in the unit. The Department of the Interior raised the rent on each
of the 7,560 acres to the nonunitized KGS rate of $1 per year. The leases
resisted this added charge throughout departmental administrative proceed-
ings, terminating in the Secretary's decision favoring the higher central,

76 L D. 271.

The leasee then sued the Secretary and certdin Subordinates i’ the
district court and prevailed against them, 317 F.Supp. 1192. The district
court held that the 50-cent rate applied to the eliminated acreage which,
though no longer part of the unit area, was part of all five leases still
"‘committed to an approved * * * unit plan'' and was "acreage not within a
participating area'! of the unit, as set forth in the regulations and leases.
The district court held that the Secretary "acted arbitrarily' in his conclu-
Sion that the leases and regulations authorized the $1 rental and ordered its
refund.

The Court of Appeals affirmed per curiam. Its opinion noted that the
district judge concluded that the federal oil leale failed to provide for the

instant situation where a lease encompassed both utilized acreage and acre-

age eliminated from the unit, and, in consequence, the district judge
""'charged the Secretary as draftsman of the lease with the confusion result-
ing from this oversight and ambiguity. * The Court of Appeals agreed, add-
ing, "Granting that great deference is due the Secretary's interpretations of
1920, Udall v. Tallman, 380 U.S. 1 (1965), we still agree with the district
court that the Secretary's interpretation of the leases in point is unsup-
ported. "

Staff: Dirk D. Snel (Land and Natural ReSources Division);
Douglas B. Bailey, former United States Attorney (D. Alaska)

PUBLIC LANDS; CONDEMNATION

DATE OF PATENT, NOT OF SURVEY, CONTROLS ESTATE PAT-
ENTEE ACQUIRES AND POSITION OF COLORADO RIVER; EROSION AC-
CRETION; ADEQUACY OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION; DOCTRINE OF RELA-
TION BACK.

United StateS v. 62.57 Acres in Yuma County Ariz. (Fort Yuma Land
and Investment, Inc.) (C. A. 9, No. 25222, Oct. 1, 1971; D.J. 90-1-10-743)

The first of these consolidated cases is a condemnation action to ac-
quire immediate possession of 62.57 acres in Arizona along the Colorado
River for a riverbank improvement project. The Second is an ejectment
action by the United States to remove defendants from about 145 acres,
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including the condemned lands. The pertinent facts with respect to the ap-
peal were that the land in question was surveyed in 1874. This survey was
tied to the Gila and Salt River Meridian in Arizona and Showed all the land
covered by the survey to be on the east side of the Colorado River. The
lands included in the Survey were open for homesteading and entry upon
them was made. Prior to issuance of a patent to these lands the Colorado
River moved eastward. The description of the land in the patents that is-
sued was not tied to the meanderings of the Colorado River. As a result,
at the time the patents were issued, the deScriptions covered land on both
sides of the river. The district court issued an order in which it stated
that the date of the patents controlled the effect of the Colorado River on the
lands and if at that date land covered by the descriptions in the patents was
on both sides of the river, then the patents acted to convey all of this land
and not just land on the east side of the river. The district court certified
this order pursuant to 28 U.S.C. sec. 1292(b).

At issue before the Ninth Circuit were whether the date of entry or
date of patent should control and whether the survey, when made a part of
the patent, could act to convey lands on the west side of the river. The
Court refused to apply the doctrine of relation back, holding that tne date of
patent governed and that, Since the lands in question could be located on the
ground from the survey, it was operable to convey lands on both sides of
the river. The federal claims of title to the property, as accretion to fed-
eral lands riparian to the river on the California side, were thus rejected.

Staff: Assistant United States Attorney Richard S. Allemann
(D. Ariz.)

DISTRICT COURTS

INDIANS; JURISDICTION

REVIEWABILITY OF EXCLUSION FROM TRIBAL MEMBERSHIP; AD-
MINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE ACT; INDIAN CIVIL RIGHTS ACT.

Baciarelli v. Morton (N.D. Cal., No. C-70 2200 5.C., Aug. 27, 1971;
D.J. 90-2-4-178)

Plaintiif Sought review under the Administrative Procedure Act of an
order of the Secretary of the Interior which denied to plaintiff a share in the
distribution of the tribal property of the Confederated Salish and Kootenai
Tribes of the Flathead Reservation for failure to meet the residence re-
quirements of the Tribal Constitution and Tribal Ordinance 35A, as inter-
preted by the Tribal Council. Plaintiff alleged that the Secretary's action
was arbitrary and capricious and in violation of the equal protection guaran-
tees of the Indian Civil Rights Act of 1968, 82 Stat. 73, 77, 25 U.S.C.
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Sec. 1302. The tribal Organization js 5 federal COrporation charteregq
under the provisions of the Indian Reorganization Act, 48 Stat. 984, 25

The Triba] Council had voted to deny plaintiff enrollment in the tribe
due to a lack of residence. Under the Tribal Council's interpretation of the
member ship Provisions of the Tribal Constitution and Ordinances, Plaintiff
must qualify for membership under the provisions for ""Adoption, " which
She had not done. It dppeared that plaintiff might have been eligible and

Council, Which has exclusive authority to determine its own membership
* % * had interpreted the ambiguouys Provisions jp a way that would exclude

cordance with the way it has heep interpreted by those excluSively empow-
ered to interpret it in other cases does not Seem to be'! arbitrary and

PenSable party, the tribes, Appeal is pending.

Staff: United States Attorney James 1, Browning, Jr., ang

Bruce Nolop, et a]. v. John Volpe, Secretary of TranSportation, et al.
(D. 5.D., No. Civ-71-79S, Dec. 11, 1971; D. 7. 90-1-4-391)

Seeking to halt 4 federal-aiq highway Project. The Project involved expand-
ing an exiSting two-lane road, which bisected the campus, to four lanes,
Plaintiffs alleged that defendants hag not prepared an environmental impact
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After appointment of a guardian ad litem for the minor plaintiffs, the
court held that plaintiffs had the requlslte capac1ty and standing, and that
this suit was a class action. AS to the merits of plaintiffs' complaint, the
court found that the requirements of NEPA had not been met, noting DOT
policy and Procedure Memorandum (PPM) 90-1 (1971), par.5b, requires
that an environmental impact statement be prepared for each highway sec-
tion that receives deSign approval on or after January 1, 1970, and that
PPM 90-1 Appl F-1(a) requires the preparation of impact Statements if
organized opposition has occurred or is anticipated to occur. Although the
court specifically found that plaintiffs were not seeking a retroactive appli-
cation of NEPA, there is language in the opinion that NEPA can be applied
retroactively. The court enjoined consStruction of the project until the pro-
visions of NEPA are met.

Staff: United States Attorney William F. Clayton, and Assistant
United States Attorney David R. Gienapp (D. S.D.);
Joseph J. Leahy (Land and Natural Resources Division)
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